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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 19 JUNE 2017
REPORT ON: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR TO 31 MARCH

2017
REPORT BY: TREASURER / Z
REPORT NO: TRB 13-2017 ITEM No: £

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board the Annual Governance Statement for approval and inclusion in
the unaudited Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 which is also being
submitted to the Board.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:
i notes the contents of this covering report;

i approves the Annual Governance Statement which is included as an Appendix
to this report; and

iii instructs the Treasurer to include the Annual Governance Statement in the
Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2017.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
4 BACKGROUND

4.1 The relevant statutory provisions regarding the preparation of the Board's Accounts are
contained in the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2014.
Section 5 of these regulations require that "...the local authority must conduct a review
at least once in each financial year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control.
The findings of the review... must be considered at a meeting of the local authority...
(and) following consideration of the findings of the review... that authority must approve
an annual governance statement.” There is no requirement to have separate meetings
for the consideration of the findings and then the approval of the annual governance
statement. Both may be undertaken at the same meeting.

4.2  Asin previous years the Annual Accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement)
have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (the Code) which stipulates that the following information should be included
in the Annual Governance Statement:

i. An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a sound system of
governance;

i. An indication of the level of assurance that the systems and processes that
comprise the board’s governance arrangements can provide;

ii. A brief description of the key elements of the governance framework;

iv. A brief description of the process that has been applied in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance arrangements, including some
comment on the role of the board, internal audit and other explicit
reviews/assurance mechanisms;
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v. An outline of the actions taken, or proposed, to deal with significant governance
issues, including an agreed action plan; and

vi. A specific statement on whether the Board's financial management arrangements
conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of
the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2016) as set out in the CIPFA's
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016); and where
they do not, an explanation of how they deliver the same impact.

The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 is included on

4.3
Appendix A.
5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.
6 CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the
preparation of this report and are in agreement with the contents.
7 BACKGROUND PAPERS
CIPFA: Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2016/2017;
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014,
CIPEA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government
(2016); and
CIPFA’s Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (201 6).
GREGORY COLGAN
TREASURER 8 JUNE 2017
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APPENDIX A
TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with
the law and appropriate standards. This is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The
Board also has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions
are carried out.

In discharging these responsibilites elected members and senior officers are responsible for
implementing effective arrangements for goveming the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board will be asked to approve and adopt an updated Local Code of Corporate
Governance that is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government (2016). This statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements.

The Board’'s Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board is
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It
enables the Board to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the seven supporting principles of effective
corporate governance. These are as follows:

e  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule
of law;

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement,

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits:
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes;
Developing the entities capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it;
Managing risks and performance through robust intemal control and strong public financial
management; and

o Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework
of regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management
supervision.

The overall control arrangements include:

« Identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

¢ Monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

¢ Reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

e Clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regulations,
Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

o Approved Fraud Guidelines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistle-blowing"
arrangements under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998;
Setting targets to measure financial and service performance;
Formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures; and

o The assurances provided by Internal Audit through their independent review work of the Board's
internal control systems.

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfilment of their duties and to ensure that
local authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest level, CIPFA's Role of
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the Chief Financial Officer (2016) has introduced a "comply or explain" requirement in the Annual
Accounts.

Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effective
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors and
prepare action plans as appropriate. In addition the Board have made a self-assessment of their own
arrangements. This involved the completion, by the Bridge Manager, of a 94-point checklist covering the
seven supporting principles defined in CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government (2016). This indicated a high level of compliance. The Board's Internal Audit Service
conforms with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and reports to the Board. Internal Audit undertakes
an annual programme of work, which is reported to the Board. The Internal Auditor provides an
independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with the principles set out in CIPFA's Role of the Chief Financial Officer (2016).

Continuous Improvement Agenda

During 2014/2015, Internal Audit conducted their programme of audits, including reviews of Contract
Management, Compliance with Legislation and Staff Recruitment and Retention. These identified the
following areas where further improvements could be made:

« Develop a Whistle-Blowing policy;
« Develop a Records Management policy; and
« Update the Financial Regulations.

A Whistle-Blowing policy was developed and reported to the June 2016 Board meeting.
A new Records Management policy was implemented in September 2016.

During 2015/2016, Internal Audit conducted its programme of audits including a review of Physical
Security and Asset Management which identified the following area where further improvements could be
made:

« Develop an assets disposal record and incorporate it into the office procedures.
An Asset Disposal record was implemented in October 2015 and incorporated into the Office Procedures.

During 2016/2017, Internal Audit conducted its programme of audits and it was reported that there were
no significant governance weaknesses noted.

In addition, the following areas were identified by the Bridge Manager when completing the self-
assessment checklist as part of the Board's assurance gathering process, where further improvement
could be made:

e Induction training for new members;
Update the Standing Orders, including the Scheme of Delegation, Tender Procedures and Financial
Regulations;

e Update the Local Code of Corporate Governance to reflect the updated CIPFA Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016);

« Declaration of Interest to be added as a standing item on the Board's meeting agenda;
Produce an up-to-date Register of Interests for staff; and

o Equalities and Human Rights training for all employees.

It is proposed that during 2017/2018 steps are taken to address the outstanding items identified in the
Continuous Improvement Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements.

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code's principles of delivering good

governance in local government operated effectively and the Board complies with the Local Code of
Corporate Governance in all significant respects.

Alan Hutchison

Chair Bridge Manager
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
11 September 2017 11 September 2017

TRB 13-2017 — Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017-20170619



1 149

REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 19 JUNE 2017

REPORT ON: UNAUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2017

REPORT BY: TREASURER
REPORT NO: TRB 14-2017 ITEM No: f 3)

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide some additional commentary on the unaudited Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2017 which is being submitted to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
along with this report.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Board:
i notes the contents of this covering report;

i notes the unaudited Annual Accounts which have been submitted along with
report;

iii instructs the Treasurer to submit the Annual Accounts to the Controller of Audit,
Accounts Commission for Scotland; and

iv notes that the key assumptions underpinning the independent actuaries’
calculation of the Board's IAS 19 liability have been reviewed and accepted by
Dundee City Council as administering authority for the Pension Fund.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Board's 2016/2017 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that there was a
break-even position during the year after the required accounting adjustments. This
gives a total General Reserve Balance of £1,160,591 as at 31 March 2017.

4 BACKGROUND

4.1 The relevant statutory provisions regarding the preparation of the Board's Accounts are
contained in the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2014,
Section 8 of these regulations requires that "... all the accounts of the local authority are
made up and balanced as soon as practicable after the year end of each financial year
and that sufficient copies of an abstract of the said accounts for each financial year are
prepared ... and submitted to the authority and submitted to the appointed Auditor not
later than 30 June in the next financial year...".

42  Asin previous years the Annual Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code). There are no significant
changes included within the 2016/2017 Code, that impact upon the Board's Accounts.

4.3 The Annual Accounts already include a detailed commentary on the figures contained

therein and it is not intended to repeat this in this covering report. It is however, worth
reiterating a few of the more salient points.

TRB 14-2017 — Unaudited Statement of Accounts-20170619




150

4.4

4.5

4.6

During the financial year the Board received quarterly revenue monitoring reports to
keep the members fully appraised as to actual spend-to-date and the projected revenue
outturn position. The Board's 2016/2017 Movement in Reserves Statement shows that
there was a balanced budget during the year. The main variances were as follows:

£000
Administration underspend (80)
Operations overspend 84
Plant and Equipment underspend (37)
Bridge Maintenance underspend (59)
Other Operating Income and Expenditure underspend (1)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure underspend (3)
Non-Specific Grant Income unapplied 47
Other accounting adjustments overspend 49

TOTAL

Further details of the other areas of under and overspend together with reasons for
these variances are included on page 9 of the Annual Accounts. The overall effect of
the above resulted in a closing General Reserve Balance of £1,160,591 as at 31 March
2017.

On 7 December 2015, the Board approved a 2016/2017 Capital Expenditure
Programme (Report TRB 28-2015) for various works on the bridge and other
miscellaneous capital purchases totalling £687,000 which would be funded by capital
grant from the Scottish Government. The Board received quarterly capital monitoring
reports to keep members fully appraised as to the actual spend-to-date and the
projected capital expenditure outturn position. The last projected outturn on the capital
programme of £167,000 was reported to the Board on 6 March 2017, (report TRB 6-
2017 refers).

During the financial year 2016/2017, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £77,000,
i.e. an underspend of £610,000 against the approved capital budget. The variance
against the original budget relates to net budget savings during the year of £425,000
and slippage to 2017/2018 of £185,000.

Copies of the enclosed Accounts will now be sent to the Controller of Audit at the
Accounts Commission for Scotland. He will then instruct the Board's appointed external
auditor (Mr Bruce Crosbie, Senior Audit Manager, Audit Scotland) to commence his
audit of the Accounts. The outcome of the audit will be reported back to the Board in
due course.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,

Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.
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6 CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of this
report and are in agreement with the contents.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

GREGORY COLGAN
TREASURER 8 JUNE 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 elected members who are appointed by the three constituent local authorities to
serve on the Board. Dundee City Council nominates 6 members, Angus Council has 1 member and Fife
Council nominates the remaining 5 members. Following the Scottish Local Government Elections that were
held in May 2013 it was agreed by the Board that Dundee City Council would continue to act as lead authority
to the Board, and consequently, the Council are required to appoint officers to serve as officials of the Board.
At the end of financial year 2016/2017, the Members and Officials of the Board were:

Councnllor Jimmy Black (\fce Chalr)
Councillor Will Dawson
Councillor Ken Lynn
Councillor Bill Campbell
Councilior Tom Ferguson
Councnll Fraser Macphers

Councillor Sheila Hands

Councnllor Margaret Taylor (Chalr)
Councillor Jim Young
Councillor Brian Thomson
Councillor Bill Connor
Councillor Andy Heer

Mr Gregory Colgan, ACMA, CGMA, Dundee City Council

Contact Details:
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board website: www.tayroadbridge.co.uk

Bridge Manager Engineer Clerk Treasurer

Bridge Office c/o Dundee City Council c/o Dundee City Council c/o Dundee City Council
Marine Parade City Development Cormporate Services Corporate Services
Dundee 50 North Lindsay Street 21 City Square 50 North Lindsay Street
DD13JB Dundee Dundee Dundee

01382 433044 01382433711 01382 434202 01382 433555
alan.hutchison@ fergus.wilson@ roger.mennie@ gregory.colgan@
Meecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY - BRIDGE MANAGER'S REPORT

Organisational Changes

In March 2016, the Board approved a report by the Bridge Manager recommending the implementation of a
revised staffing structure and alternative method for how the Operations Team manage traffic on the
bridge to ensure a more efficient and effective service. The Bridge Manager proposed that the Operations
Officers be trained to operate an Impact Protection Vehicle in order to reduce the number and duration of
full bridge closures associated with breakdown and debris recovery and to assist with bridge inspections.

In order to progress implementation of this change a Voluntary Early Retirement (VER) and Voluntary
Redundancy (VR) scheme was offered to the Operations Team and subsequently accepted by five
members of staff. All five staff members were no longer in the employment of the Bridge Board by 31
March 2017.

Following the retirement of the Operations Manager, the Bridge Manager took the opportunity to make the
post of Maintenance and Operations Manager a position of Chartered Engineer on 1 April 2017 to assist in
succession planning and future appointments of professionally qualified individuals with relevant experience
of bridge inspection and maintenance.

The Administration Assistant was regraded to a new post of Administration Officer on 1 April 2017 to reflect
an increase of duties and responsibilities.

In addition, the Bridge Inspector qualified as a Transport Manager through the Road Haulage Association
and this is to ensure that the Board's vehicles and drivers are in full compliance with the latest legislative
requirements surrounding ownership of commercial vehicles.

Management Arrangements with Scottish Government

During this period, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Operations Team of Transport Scotland. Meetings have been held on a regular basis between
Board Officers and officers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss operational and
financial matters.

Contracts

New CCTV

Cabling works associated with CCTV communications commenced at the beginning of April 2017 and new
camera installation is expected to be complete by the end of May 2017. Camera installation is being
undertaken by FES Support Services Ltd.

New Variable Message Signs

VMS Ltd of Newcastle are currently manufacturing ten new variable message signs for the bridge and its
approaches as agreed at the March 2016 Board meeting. Installation by VMS Ltd is expected to be
complete by the end of summer 2017.

SESTRAN Park & Ride Proposal

Approval has been given by the Board for the sale of the land at the Fife Landfall to SESTRAN at a value
determined by the District Valuer. This proposal is currently the subject of ongoing discussion between
solicitors.



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY - BRIDGE MANAGER'S REPORT
Traffic

Traffic counts were made available in September 2016 for reporting to the Board quarterly following the
reconfiguration of the ramps.

One or both lanes on the bridge were closed on a number of occasions over the past twelve months. The
table below summarises the reasons and number of occurrences:-

Operational,
Wind speed | Wind speed {Wind speed >| Works Full Breakdowns and | Miscellaneous and
> 80mph > 60mph 45mph Closures Minor Accidents | Police Closures
Closed to all No Double
Vehicles Cars Only | Deck buses
0 7 43 0 53 394
Comparator figures for 2015/2016:
4 F 26 | 73 | 0 | 51 { 432

Over the period there were no full closures due to winds exceeding 80mph (2015/2016 = 4) and the number
of wind related restrictions is less than half of the recorded restrictions when compared to 2015/2016.

The number of short term single carriageway closures to clear breakdowns and minor accidents from the
bridge is comparable over this time compared to 2015/2016.

There were no full closures for works during 2016/2017 (2015/2016 = nil).
Staffing Issues
Staff Establishment

Staffing levels and the existing establishment stands as follows:-

2016/2017 2015/2016
Administration 3 4
Operational 11 15
Maintenance 8 8
Total 22 27

50th Anniversary

During the year several events were held to mark the fiftieth anniversary of the opening of the Tay Road
Bridge Joint Board. These were widely regarded by the general public, Board Members and staff as being
successful.

Forthcoming Management Changes and Acknowledgements
| would like to thank the Chair and Vice-Chair for their help and support over the years and that of other

Board Members who announced that they would not be seeking re-election at the upcoming Local
Elections in May 2017.

| would also like to mention my appreciation for the help and co-operation received over the years from the
Treasurer who announced that she would be retiring in June 2017.

Alan Hutchison
Bridge Manager
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
11 September 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY - TREASURER'S REPORT

Introduction
This report is intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's financia! position, as
presented within the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2016/2017.

Annual Governance Statement (see page 11)

This statement sets out the Board's Corporate Governance arrangements, explaining how the Board
conducts its business, both internally and in its dealings with others. The main components of the
system are listed, together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial
action taken.

Annual Remuneration Report (see page 13)
This report sets out the remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the senior employee of the
Board and the policy context, in accordance with Scottish Government regulations.

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (see page 17)
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer.

The Accounting Statements (see pages 18 to 50)

Expenditure and Funding Analysis:

Shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources such as government grants by the
Board in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the Board in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Board's operational divisions.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account:

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices.

Movement in Reserves Statement:
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed
into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves'.

Balance Sheet:
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.

Cash Flow Statement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements:

These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detailed in the
financial statements. They also include the Accounting Policies which set out the basis upon which
the financial statements have been prepared and explain the accounting treatment of both general and
specific items.

CIPFA's Telling the Story Review of the Presentation of Local Authority Financial Statements:

Following publication in 2015 of CIPFA's Telling the Story Review of the Presentation of Local
Authority Financial Statements, the 2016/2017 Code changed the segmental reporting arrangements
for the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and introduced the Expenditure and
Funding Analysis. The new Expenditure and Funding Analysis brings together Local Authority
performance reported on the basis of expenditure measured under proper accounting practices with
statutorily defined charges to the General Reserve. Both the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the Expenditure and Funding Analysis include a segmental analysis which requires
local authorities to report performance on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate,
monitor and manage financial performance. Therefore, Local Authorities are no longer required to
report the cost of individual services in their Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
accordance with the format specified in CIPFA's Service Reporting Code of Practice. The 2016/2017
Code also introduces a new streamlined Movement in Reserves Statement.



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY - TREASURER'S REPORT

The 2016/2017 Code requires a full retrospective restatement for the new reporting format for the
segmental section of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Authorities are also
required to provide a comparative year Expenditure and Funding Analysis and to restate the
comparative year Movement on Reserves Statement consistent with the new straemlined
peresentation. There is, however, no impact on the Balance Sheet information as a result of this
change in accounting policy and therefore a third Balance Sheet is not required.

Revenue Expenditure

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 7 December 2015, approved the 2016/2017
Revenue Budget. The final budget showed a projected surplus of £50,000. The projected General
Reserve balance as at 31 March 2017 would be £1,210,591.

The Board received quarterly Revenue Monitoring reports during 2016/2017 in order to keep the
members fully appraised as to the projected revenue outturn position.

The following table reconciles the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 7 December 2015 to the
revised budget figures that are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
shown on page 19. The actual outturn for 2016/2017 was a net underspend against budget of
£49,000 before the application of accounting adjustments and the detailed variance analysis is set out
on page 9. After the required accounting adjustments this gives a total General Reserve balance of
£1,160,591 as at 31 March 2017 which is unchanged from the corresponding figure at 31 March 2016.
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY - TREASURER'S REPORT

The following two charts show how the total 2016/2017 expenditure of the Board is apportioned.
Figure 1 shows the split by the nature of expenditure, for example, staff cost, property costs, etc. and
Figure 2 shows the proportion of expenditure by operational segment.

Figure 1: 2016/17 Net Cost of Services by Nature: Figure 2: 2016/17 Net Cost of Services by Segment:

2016/2017 flet Cost of Services by

Non Segment

2016/2017 Net Cost of Services

Non Distributed Costs

Administration

10%
Corporate & __ —Staff Costs
Democratic™ 26% 7 &
Core 1% i Corporate

Democratic

Property
- Costs Core i
2% 1% Plant &
Equlpment
6%
\\ Supplies & Depredation
N Services 10% N
Dspreciation &I N Impairment Bridge
Impaitment Third B2 ny.t \\_Transport 48% aintenance
48% Paymers Costs a%
2% 1%

Administration (Underspend £80,000)

This reflects lower than anticipated expenditure on various expenditure headings including medicals,
electricity, annual insurance premiums, and internal audit fees. This was partly offset by additional
expenditure during the year on repairs to the Administration Office and the 50th Anniversary
celebration events and the street art on the columns at Dundee Landfall.

Operations (Overspend £84,000)

This reflects increased expenditure during the year on salary costs. This was partly offset by lower
than anticipated expenditure on Training Courses.

Plant & Equipment (Underspend £37,000)

This reflects savings arising from lower electricity costs due to more efficient lighting in use. In
addition, expenditure on navigation lights was lower than anticipated due to equipment installed during
the Pier Collision Protection Works as was expenditure on plant hire, equipment maintenance, fuel
costs, and professional fees in respect of the cathodic protection system as the monitoring system is
scheduled to be replaced in 2017/2018.

Bridge Maintenance (Underspend £59,000)

Reflects lower than anticipatedexpenditure in relation to the scheduled refurbishment of the toilets at
Fife car park. In addition, expenditure on materials, de-icing materials, and weather forecasting were
lower than anticipated and there was also a saving in relation to structural inspections as a result of
more work being undertaken in-house. These were partly offset by increased expenditure on training
courses and higher than anticipated costs associated with ground maintenance at the Fife landfall.

Other Operating Income and Expenditure (Underspend £1,000)
Reflects higher than anticipated income due to the sale of scrap metal.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (Underspend £3,000)

Reflects lower than anticipated expenditure on investment property due to less repairs required than
expected as well as slightly higher than anticipated Interest on Revenue Balances as a result of
increased average cash balances.
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Non-Specific Grant Income (Income Shortfall £47,000)

Reflects the net underspend on other budget heads, as detailed above. Any unused Revenue Grant
(with conditions attached to its use) requires to be held in creditors so that it can be applied to match
expenditure in future years.

Other Accounting Adjustments (Overspend £50,000)
Reflects overspends on IFRS Code Accounting adjustments and IAS 19 adjustments.

Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2016/2017, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £77,000 on the following projects:-

£000
Capital Expenditure:

Vehicles 21
Central Walkway Resurfacing 7
Paintwork to Box Girders 14
Other Projects 35
77

Capital expenditure was funded as follows:
£000
Capital Grant from the Scottish Government 77
77

Control of Revenue and Capital Expenditure

The control of both the revenue and capital expenditure of the Board is an on-going and substantial
exercise which requires a positive contribution from staff and elected members to ensure that the
Board's financial objectives are achieved and that the financial resources are fully utilised.

Pension Liability (IAS 19)

Under 1AS 19 (Employee Benéfits) the Board is required to include figures in its Statement of
Accounts relating to the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its
employees. It has been estimated that the Board had a net pension liability of £2 545,000 as at 31
March 2017. The estimated net pension liability at 31 March 2016 was £1,614,000. The overall
increase was due to an increase in the present value of the funded obligation of the scheme, partly
offset by an increase in the fair value of fund assets.

Acknowledgements

During the 2016/2017 financial year the Board's financial position has required continuous scrutiny and
strict budgetary control. | would like to thank the Bridge Manager, Bridge Engineer and their staff for
their assistance in controlling the Board's expenditure and income. in addition, | wish to mention my
appreciation of the help and co-operation provided during the financial year by the elected members
and by Roger Mennie, Clerk to the Board.

Finally, | would conclude my report by thanking all staff who contributed to the preparation of the
Board's 2016/2017 Annual Accounts.

Gregory Colgan, ACMA, CGMA
Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
11 September 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

In discharging these responsibilities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board will be asked to approve and adopt an updated Local Code of Corporate Governance
that is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government (2016). This statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance
and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements.

The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board is
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It enables
the Board to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the seven supporting principles of effective
corporate governance. These are as follows:

behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law:
ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits;

determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of intended outcomes;

developing the entity's capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it;
managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management;
implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of
regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management
supervision.

The overall control arrangements include:

identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regulations, Tender

Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

o approved Fraud Guidelines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistle-blowing"
arrangements under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998;

e setting targets to measure financial and service performance;

o formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures; and

¢ the assurances provided by Internal Audit through their independent review work of the Board's internal

control systems.

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfilment of their duties and to ensure that local
authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest level, CIPFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer (2016) has introduced a "comply or explain” requirement in the Annual Accounts.

1"
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Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effective
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors and
prepare action plans as appropriate. In addition the Board has made a self-assessment of their own
arrangements. This involved the completion, by the Bridge Manager, of a 94-point checklist covering the
seven supporting principles defined in CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
(2016). This indicated a high level of compliance. The Board's Internal Audit Service conforms with Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards and reports to the Board. Internal Audit undertakes an annual programme of
work, which is reported to the Board. The Internal Auditor provides an independent opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with the principles set out in CIPFA's Role of the Chief Financial Officer (2016).
Continuous Improvement Agenda

During 2014/2015, Internal Audit conducted its programme of audits, including reviews of Contract
Management, Compliance with Legislation and Staff Recruitment and Retention. These identified the
following areas where further improvements could be made:

o Develop a Whistle-Blowing policy;
« Develop a Records Management policy; and
e Update the Financial Regulations.

A Whistle-Blowing policy was developed and reported to the June 2016 Board meeting.
A new Records Management policy was implemented in September 2016.

During 2015/2016, Internal Audit conducted its programme of audits including a review of review of Physical
Security and Asset Management which identified the following area where further improvements could be
made:

 Develop an assets disposal record and incorporate it into the office procedures.
An Asset Disposal record was implemented in October 2015 and incorporated into the Office Procedures .

During 2016/2017, Internal Audit conducted its programme of audits and it was reported that there were no
significant governance weaknesses noted.

In addition, the following areas were identified by the Bridge Manager when completing the self-assessment
checklist as part of the Board's assurance gathering process, where further improvement could be made:

¢ Induction training for new members;

e Update the Standing Orders, including the Scheme of Delegation, Tender Procedures and Financial
Regulations; )

e Update the Local Code of Corporate Governance to reflect the updated CIPFA Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016);

o Declaration of Interest to be added as a standing item on the Board's meeting agenda;

¢ Produce an up-to-date Register of Interests for staff; and

e Equalities and Human Rights training for all employees.

It is proposed that during 2017/2018 steps are taken to address the outstanding items identified in the
Continuous Improvement Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements.

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code’s principles of delivering good governance
in local government operated effectively and the Board complies with the Local Code of Corporate
Governance in all significant respects.

Alan Hutchison

Chair Bridge Manager
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
11 September 2017 11 September 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is required to prepare and publish within its Annual Accounts an annual Remuneration Report
under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2014. The report sets out the
remuneration of the Chair and Vice-Chair and Senior Employees of the Board and accrued pension benefits
of the Senior Employees of the Board. The report also provides information on the number of Board
employees (including Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more, this
information being disclosed in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. The following report has been
prepared in accordance with the aforementioned Regulations and also in accordance with other relevant
guidance.

The Board's External Auditor is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and give a
separate opinion in his report on the Annual Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Regulations. All of the tables in this report are subject to audit, and
the remainder of the report is subject to review.

REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members

The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration)
Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations set out the remuneration payable to Councillors with
the responsibility of a Chair or Vice-Chair of a Joint Board. The Regulations require the remuneration to be
paid by the Council of which the Chair or Vice-Chair is a member.

The Board has an arrangement with each Council which remunerates the Chair and Vice-Chair, to reimburse
the Council for the additional costs of that councillor arising from them being a Chair or Vice-Chair of the
Board. The disclosures made in this report are limited to the amounts paid to the Council by the Board for
remuneration and does not reflect the full value of the remuneration that may be paid to the councillor.

The remuneration details for the Chair and Vice-Chair of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are set out in Table 1.

Senior Employees

The salary of Senior Employees is set by reference to national agreements. The salaries of senior
employees of the Board take into account the duties and responsibilities of their posts. The Board is
responsible for agreeing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitied to participate in
Dundee City Council’s Contract Car Hire Scheme, subject to meeting certain criteria. The Council's Policy &
Resources Committee is responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remuneration Report, the Regulations set out the following criteria for designation as
a Senior Employee of the Board:

(i) has responsibility for management of the Board to the extent that the person has power to direct or
control the major activities of the Board (including activities involving the expenditure of money), during
the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;

(i) holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c) of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989; or

(iii) annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000 or
more.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criteria for designation as a Senior Employee in
2016/2017, with the employee falling into category (i) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Employees of the Board are set out in Table 2.

The Regulations also require information to be published on the total number of Board employees (including
Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be
disclosed in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and is shown in the following table.

No of No of
Remuneration Bands Employees | Employees
2016/2017 | 2015/2016
£50,000 - £54,999 1 1
Total 1 1
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EXIT PACKAGES
There were five exit packages agreed during 2016/2017 (2015/2016: none). Details are set out in Table 4.

ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS

Pension benefits for Local Government Employees are provided through the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). A new Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) came into effect on 1 April 2015
based on career average related earnings (CARE Scheme).

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost
and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2009, contribution rates were set at 6% for all non-manual
employees. The members' contribution rates for 2016/2017 remain at the 2009/2010 rates although the pay
bandings have been adjusted. The tiers and contribution rates are as follows:

Contribution Contribution
Rate _ Rate
Whole Time Pay 2016/2017 |Whole Time Pay 2015/2016
On earnings up to and including £20,500 5.50% |up to and including £20,500 5.50%

On earnings above £20,500 and up to £25,000 7.25% |above £20,500 and up to £25,000] 7.25%

On earnings above £25,000 and up to £34,400 8.50% |above £25,000 and up to £34,400] 8.50%

On earnings above £34,400 and up to £45,800| 9.50% above £34,400 and up to £45,800] 9.50%

On earnings above £45,800 12% above £45,800 12%

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actual contributions paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entittement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump
sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/49th of
average pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2015 the accrual rate guaranteed a

pension based on 1/60" of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the

accrual rate guaranteed a pension based on 1/80"™ and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable
salary and years of pensionable service.

Senior Employees
The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 3, together with the pension
contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextual Information

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person
will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at
that age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person
has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current
appointment.

In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should be taken into
account:

(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and do
not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.

(i) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time. In 2016/2017, the scheme member contribution rate
for Senior Employees of the Board was in the range of 7.6% to 8.0% of pensionable pay (2015/2016:
7.6% to 8.0%). In 2016/2017, the employer contribution rate was 17% of pensionable pay for Senior
Employees (2015/2016: 17%).

Alan Hutchison

Chair Bridge Manager
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge JoInt Board
11 September 2017 11 September 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Board’s responsibilities
The Board is required to:

o make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs (section 95 of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973). In this Board, that officer is the Treasurer:

¢ manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets;

¢ ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in accordance
with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003); and

o approve the Audited Annual Accounts.

I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Joint Board at its meeting on 11
September 2017.

Signed on behalf of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

Chair
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
11 September 2017

The Treasurer's responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Board's Annual Accounts in accordance with
proper practices as required by legislation and set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code of Practice’).

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has:

e selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

o made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

e complied with legislation; and

o complied with the Code of Practice (in so far as itis compatible with legislation).

The Treasurer has also:

e kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
e takenreasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

| certify that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Board at the
reporting date and the transactions of the Board for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Gregory Colgan, ACMA, CGMA
Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
19 June 2017

17



172

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate how the funding available to the

Board (i.e. government grants)
resources consumed or earned by the
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how t
purposes between the Board'
generally accepted accounting practices is pres

Expenditure Statement.

2015/2016
Adjustments
Net  between the
Expenditure  Funding and Net
Chargeable to Accounting  Expenditure
General Fund Basis (Note 5) in the CIES
£000 £000 £000
489 3 492
498 24 522
143 - 143
294 28 322
- 2,102 2,102
1,424 2,157 3,58j
(1,424) (534) (1,958)
- 1,623 1,623
1,161
1,161

|

Expenditure
Administration

Operations

Plant and Equipment
Bridge Maintenance
Depreciation & Impairment

Corporate and Democratic
Core

Non Distributed Costs
Net Cost Of Services

Other Operating income &
Expenditure

(Surplus) or Deficit

Opening General Reserve
Balance

Less / Add Surplus or

(Deficit) on General
Reserve Balance in year

Closing General Reserve
Balance at 31 March

18

for the year has been used in providing services in comparison with those
Board in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.
his expenditure is allocated for decision making
s operational divisions. Income and expenditure accounted for under
ented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and

2016/2017
Adjustments
Net  between the
Expenditure Funding and Net
Chargeable to Accounting Expenditure
General Fund Basis (Note 5) In the CIES
£000 £000 £000
363 4 367
719 (46) 673
242 - 242
321 29 350
- 1,943 1,943
33 - 33
- 421 421
1,678 2,351 4,029
(1,678) (440) (2,118)
= 1,911 1,911
1,161
1,161

|
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.

2015/2016 2016/2017
Net Budgeted Net Net
Gross Gross Expenditure/ Expenditure Gross Gross Expenditure/
Expenditure Income (Income) (unaudited) Expenditure Income (income)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure
408 - 408 Administration 447 367 & 367
542 - 542 Operations 589 673 - 673
144 - 144 Plant & Equipment 279 242 - 242
353 - 353 Bridge Maintenance 409 350 - 350
2,102 - 2,102 Depreciation & Impairment 1,943 1,943 - 1,943
Corporate and Democratic
32 - 32 Core 33 33 - 33
- B - Non Distributed Costs 421 421 . 421
3,581 - 3,581 Net Cost Of Services 4,121 4,029 - 4,029

Other Operating Income &
- 1) (1)  Expenditure (nole 7) - 2 (1) M

Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure

61 (34) 27 (note 8) 39 60 (24) 36
Non-Specific Granl Income
- (1,984) (1,984) (note 9) (2,200) - {2,153) (2,153)
(Surplus) or Deficit on
3,642 (2,019) 1,623 Provision of Services 1,960 4,089 (2,178) 1,911

(Surplus) or deficit on
49 (100) (51) revaluation of PPE 22 3 9) 22

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on

316 (751) (435) Pension Assets / Liabilities 463 1,934  (1,471) 463
Other Comprehensive
365 (851) (486) income and Expenditure 485 1,965 (1,480) 485

Total Comprehensive
4,007 (2,870) 1,137 income and Expenditure 2,445 6,054 (3,658) 2,396

18
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

The Movement on Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the
different reserves held by the Board, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves.’ The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Board's
reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. The Net Increase / (Decrease) line shows the statutory General Reserve Balance
movements in the year following those adjustments.

Revenue  Capital
Reserves Reserves
Capital
General Grants Total Total
Fund Unapplied Usable Unusable Board
Balance Account Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2015 (1,161) (895)  (2,056) (71,894) (73,950)

Movement in Reserves during 2015/2016

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 1,623 - 1,623 (486) 1,137

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding

basis under regulations (note 6) (1,623) 19  (1,604) 1,604 -

Net (Increase) /Decrease before Transfers to

Earmarked Reserves - 19 19 1,118 1,137

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves - - - . -

(Increase) / Decrease in 2015/2016 - 19 19 1,118 1,137

Balance at 31 March 2016 carried forward (1,161) (876)  (2,037) (70,776) (72,813)

Movement in Reserves during 2016/2017

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 1,911 - 1,911 485 2,396

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding

basis under regulations (note 6) (1,911) (423) (2,334) 2,334 -
Net (Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to

Earmarked Reserves - (423) (423) 2,819 2,396

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -

(Increase) / Decrease in Year - (423) (423) 2,819 2,396

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward (1,161)  (1,299)  (2,460) (67,957) (70,417)

20



The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by
the Board. The net assets of the Board (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the
Board. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that the Board may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure). The second category of reserves is those that the Board is not able to use
to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
BALANCE SHEET

‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March 2016
£000

72,392

71

72,463

61
21
3,050

3,132

(1,168)

(1,168)

(1,614)

(1,614)

72,813

2,037
70,776

72,813

Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Total Long Term Assets

Inventories

Short Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets

Short Term Creditors
Total Current Liabilities

Net Pension Liabilities
Total Long Term Liabilities

Net Assets
Usable reserves

Unusable Reserves
Total Reserves

Note

21
20

23
24
14

25

10
11

31 March 2017
£000

70,503

71

70,574

57
23
3,612

3,592

(1,204)

(1,204)

(2,545)

(2,545)

70,417

2,460
67,957

70,417

Gregory Colgan, ACMA, CGMA
Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
19 June 2017
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Board generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Board are funded by way of
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Board. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Board's
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future

cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Board.

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
1,623  Net (surplus) o deficit on the provision of services 1,911

(2,476)  Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements (2,013)

Adjust for items inciuded in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that

525  are investing and financing activities 77
* S ———

(328)  Net cash flows from Operating Activities (25)

(1)  Investing Activities (note 12) (423)

(12)  Financing Activities (note 13) (14)
S

(341)  Net(Increase) or Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (462)
2,709 Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 3,050
—

3,050 Cash and cash equivalents at the end ot the reporting period (note 14) 3,512

e
—
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD 177
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A General Principles

The Annual Accounts summarise the Board's transactions for the 2016/2017 financial year and its position
at the year-end of 31 March 2017. The Board is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014. Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003
requires that they be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under
Section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016/2017 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/2017, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under Section 12 of the
2003 Act. The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is principally historical cost, modified
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets.

B Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

e Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Board.

* Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Board can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Board.

* Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

* Expenses in relation to services received (including those rendered by the Board's employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received, rather than when payments are made.

o Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence
that debts are unlikely to be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to
revenue for the income that might not be collected.

C Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise short term lending that is repayable on
demand or within 3 months of the Balance Sheet date and that is readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are
shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Board's cash
management.

D Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Prior Period Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the Board's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made and it is
material to the financial statements, it is applied retrospectively (unless otherwise stated) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future
years affected by the change. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively
by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

E Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the
cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

e depreciation attributable to the assets used by the Board; and
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e revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the Board where there are no accumulated gains
in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

The Board is not required to apply revenue grant receipts to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore reversed by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

F Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment,

Short-term employee benefits (those that fall due wholly within 12 months of the year-end), such as wages
and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for
current employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the
Board. An accrual is made against Staff Costs in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the
cost of holiday entitliements and other forms of leave earned by employees but not taken before the year-
end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the
remuneration rates applicable in the foliowing financial year, being the period in which the employee takes
the benefit. Any accrual made is required under statute to be reversed out of the General Reserve by a
credit to the Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Board to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the
Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when
the Board can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Board recognises costs for a
restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Board to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid
at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits.

Employees of the Board are members of a separate pension scheme being the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme (Tayside Pension Fund), a defined benefits scheme which is administered by
Dundee City Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Board.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

e The liabilities of the Tayside Pension Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance Sheet
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of earnings for current employees.

e Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative
rate of return on high quality corporate bond, iBoxx AA rated over 15 year corporate bond index.

e The assets of the Tayside Pension Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance Sheet at
their fair value:

o quoted securities — current bid price

unquoted securities ~ professional estimate

unitised securities — current bid price

property — market value.

0o 0 O
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The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
e Service cost comprising:

e current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year ~
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to Staff Costs;

® past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising as a result of a scheme amendment or

curtailment whose effect relates to years of service eamed in earlier years — debited to the Surpius

- or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
part of Non Distributed Costs; and

® net interest on the defined benefit liability / (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the Board — the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) that arises from the passage of
time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability / (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability / (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

¢ Re-measurements comprising:

e the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit
liability / (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserves Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure; and

e actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
co-incided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure.

o contributions paid to the Tayside Pension Fund - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged
with the amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact on the General
Reserve of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Board also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

G Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date when the Annual Accounts are authorised for issue. Two types
of events can be identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the Annual
Accounts are adjusted to reflect such events; and

o those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Annual Accounts are
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Annual Accounts.
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H Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Board when there is reasonable assurance that:

e the Board will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Board are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. Monies advanced as grants and
contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors.
When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant line (Non-Specific Grant
Income) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Where capital grants are credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Reserve
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Where it has been applied, it is posted
to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are transferred to
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

| Heritage Assets

The Board's Heritage Assets are held in support of the primary objective of increasing knowledge,
understanding and appreciation of the history of the Tay Road Bridge and the surrounding area. Heritage
assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in
accordance with the Board's accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the
measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below. The accounting policies in
relation to heritage assets are also presented below.

The Board's heritage assets are accounted for as follows:

Heritage Assets Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The Board holds heritage assets which, in light of the relaxation of measurement rules, are not recognised

in the balance sheet. The Board considers that, due to the unique nature of the assets held and the lack of
comparable values, the cost of obtaining valuations would be disproportionate in relation to the benefits to
the users of the Board's financial statements. As a result, fair value information is unavailable and cost
information is also unknown. These assets are therefore not recognised in the balance sheet, however,
detailed information regarding them is held on relevant databases.

J Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is assigned using the First-in-First-out (FIFO) costing formula.
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K Investment Properties

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of
goods or is held for sale. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair
value, being the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at
highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market
conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same
treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in relation to investment properties
are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Reserve
Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements
to have an impact on the Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

L Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and
buildings elements are considered separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal
status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this
policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Board as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at fair value together with an equivalent deferred liability for the obligation to
pay the lessor. Where applicable, any initial direct costs of the Board are added to the carrying amount of
the asset. Any premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the years in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

¢ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down
the lease liability; and

e a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the relevant
accounting policies applied generally to such assets e.g. depreciation, revaluation and impairment review.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this
does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. if there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the

lease).

The Board as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Board grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant
asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale)
is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Board's net investment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal),
matched by a lease asset in the Balance Sheet.
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Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease liability
(together with any premiums received); and

e finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Operating Leases

Where the Board grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet as a non-current asset and continues to be subject to depreciation,
revaluation and impairment review, in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. Rental income is
credited to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits
are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Any initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

M Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
for rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition.

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Board and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic benefits or
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement,
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

e the purchase price; and

* any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The Board does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. The cost of
assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have
commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Board). In the latter case,
where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset
given up by the Board. Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair
value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally.
Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Reserve
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e infrastructure and vehicles, plant & equipment — depreciated historical cost;
e all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing
use (existing use value — EUV).
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Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. Assets included in the Balance
Sheet at current value are re-valued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not
materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases
in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Exceptionally, gains would be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where
they arise from the reversal of a revaluation or impairment loss previously charged to a service. Where
decreases in value are identified, the revaluation loss is accounted for by:

¢ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);

e Wwhere there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its

formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment

Account.

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss
is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

* where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have
been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Assets Held for Sale / Disposals_

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
re-valued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains
in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not
charged on Assets Held for Sale. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as
Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts received for disposals are
categorised as capital receipts. Receipts are required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and
can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Board's underlying need to
borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment
Account from the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of

their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable
finite useful life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under
construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

e buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer.
e vehicles, plant and equipment — straight line allocation over between 3 and 20 years.
e infrastructure — straight-line allocation over between 10 and 85 years.

Depreciable assets are not depreciated in the year of purchase, but are depreciated in the year of disposal.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. Revaluation gains are
also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on
assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

N Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Board a legal or constructive obligation
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For example, the Board may be involved in a court
case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. Provisions
are charged as an expense to the appropriate line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in the year that the Board becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant
risks and uncertainties. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant heading. Where
some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the Board settles the obligation.

Contingent Llabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible obligation
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Board. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance
Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Board. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a
note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.
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O Reserves

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
heading in that year to count against the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Reserve
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against grant receipts for
the expenditure. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments and retirement benefits and these reserves do not represent usable resources for the
Board. Further information on the Board's reserves is contained in notes 10 and 11.

P VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Q FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Board measures some of its non-financial assets as investment properties at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Board measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Board takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Board uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable

inputs. Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is

measured or disclosed in the Board's financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as

follows:

e Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Board
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; or

e Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Board's investment properties are measured using the income approach, by means of a discounted
cash flow method, where the expected cash flows from the properties are discounted (using a market
derived discount rate) to establish the present value of the net income stream. The approach has been
developed using the Board's own data requiring it to factor in assumptions such as the duration and timing
of cash inflows and outflows, rent growth, occupancy levels, bad debt levels, maintenance costs, etc.

The Board's investment properties are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as the
measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements
(and there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market participants would use different

assumptions).

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN ADOPTED

There were no relevant accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet adopted in the
2016/2017 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.
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3 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Board has had to make certain judgements about
future events. The key judgement made in the Annual Accounts relates to the high degree of uncertainty
about future levels of funding for public bodies. The Board has determined that this uncertainty is not
sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Board might be impaired as a result of a need to
reduce levels of service provision.

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptlons made by the Board
about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Board's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 for which there is a significant risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

ltem Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions
Property, Plantand  Assets are depreciated over If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation
Equipment useful lives that are dependent on increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.

assumptions about the levelof It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for
repairs and maintenance that will property, plant and equipment would increase by
be incurred in relation to £58,000 for every year that useful lives had to be
individual assets. The current reduced.

economic climate makes it

uncertain that the Board will be

able to sustain its current

spending on repairs and

maintenance, bringing into doubt

the useful lives assigned to

assets.

Pensions Liability ~ Estimation of the net liabilityto  The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in

pay pensions depends on a individual assumptions can be measured. For
number of complex judgements  instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate
relating to the discount rate used, assumption would resultin a decrease in the pension
the rate at which salaries are liability of £180,000.

projected to increase, changes in  However, the assumptions interact in complex ways.
retirement ages, mortality rates ~ During 2016/2017, the Board's actuaries advised that
and expected returns on pension the net pensions assets had increased by £1,440,000
fund assets. A firm of consulting as a result of estimates being corrected as a result of
actuaries is engaged to provide  experience and decreased by £1 ,903,000 attributable
the Board with expert advice to updating of the assumptions.

about the assumptions to be

applied.

This list does not include any assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value based on a recently
observed market price.
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5 EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN FUNDING AND
ACCOUNTING BASIS

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General
Reserve to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The relevant
transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2016/2017
Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis
Net Change
Adjustments from General Reserve to Adjustments  for the
arrive at Comprehensive Income & for Capital  Pensions Other Total
Expenditure Statement Amounts Purposes  Adjustment Ditferences Adjustments
Explanatory Notes: (1) (2 (3)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Administration - 4 - 4
Operations - (46) - (46)
Plant & Equipment - - - -
Bridge Maintenance - 29 - 29
Depreciation & Impairment 1,943 - - 1,943
Corporate & Democratic Core - e A :
Non Distributed Costs - 421 - 421
Net Cost of Services 1,943 408 - 2,351
Other Operating Income & Expenditure
from the Expenditure & Funding Analysis (500) 60 = (440)
Difference between General Reserve
Surplus or Deficit and CIES Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,443 468 - 1,911

2015/2016
Adjustments between Funding & Accounting Basis
Net Change
Adjustments from General Reserve to Adjustments  for the
arrive at Comprehensive Income & for Capital  Pensions Other Total
Expenditure Statement Amounts Purposes  Adjustment Differences Adjustments
Explanatory Notes: (1 (2 (3)
£000 £000 £000 £000
Administration . 3 = 3
Operations - 24 - 24
Plant & Equipment - . B .
Bridge Maintenance - 28 - 28
Depreciation & Impairment 2,102 - - 2,102
Corporate & Democratic Core - - - .
Non Distributed Costs - - - .
Net Cost of Services 2,102 55 - 2,157

Other Operating Income & Expenditure
from the Expenditure & Funding Analysis (591) 59 @ (534)

Difference between General Reserve
Surplus or Deficit and CIES Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,511 114 (2) 1,623
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Explanatory Notes:

1

2)

3)

Adjustments for capital purposes - this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation

gains and losses in the services line and for:

a) Other operating expenditure - adjustments for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

b) Financing and investment income and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie
loan repayments and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure
as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

¢) Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure - capital grants are adjusted for income not
chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those
receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited
with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in
the year.

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits

pension related expenditure and income:

a) For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the Board
as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

b) For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the CIES.

Other differences between amounts debited / credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement and amounts payable /receivable to be recognised under statute:

a) For Financing and investment income and expenditure - the other differences column recognises
adjustments to the General Reserve for the re-measurement of the revenue costs / income
associated with financial instruments.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS - EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

The Board's expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2015/2016  2016/2017

Net Net

Expenditure / Expenditure /

Expenditure: (Income) (Income)
£000 £000
Staft Costs 1,009 1,046
Property Costs 65 84
Supplies & Services 281 400
Transport Costs 23 29
Third Party Payments 69 73
Depreciation & Impairment 2,102 1,943
Corporate & Democratic Core 32 33
Non Distributed Costs - 421
Total Expenditure 3,581 4,029

Income: :

Fees, Charges & Other Service Income m (1)

Interest & Investment Income 27 36

Government Grants & Contributions (1,984) (2,153)

Total Income (1,958) (2,118)
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 1,623 1,911
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6 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND

FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised by the Board in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Board to meet future capital and revenue

expenditure.

2016/2017

Revenue
Reserves

Capital
Reserves
Capital Movement
General Grants in
Fund Unapplied Unusable Total
Balance Account Reserves 2016/2017
£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment
Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current
assets

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties
Capital grants and contributions that have been applied
to capital financing

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts

Reserve:
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the

gainfloss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new
capital expenditure

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account:

Reversal of unapplied capital grant and contributions
credited to the Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statement

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post employment benefits
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (see note 16)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating
Compensated Absences Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory

(1,943) - 1,944 1

500 . (500) ;

- (423) 423 .

(696) . 695 (1)

228 ] (228) ;

requirements
Total Adjustments

(1.911) (423) 2334 -
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2015/2016

Revenue
Reserves

General
Fund
Balance
£000

Capital
Reserves

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
Account
£000

Movement
in
Unusable

Reserves
£000

Total
2015/2016
£000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment
Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current
assets

Movements in the fair value of investment Properties
Capital grants and contributions that have been applied
to capital financing

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts
Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new
capital expenditure

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account:

Reversal of unapplied capital grant and contributions
credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post employment benefits
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (see note 16)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating
Compensated Absences Adjustment Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement on
an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

(2,102)
9
582

(288)

174

19

2,102

)
(601)

288

(174)

2

Total Adjustments (1,623)
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7 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000

(1)  Fees and Charges (1)

- (Gains) / Losses on the disposal of non current assets -

(1) Total (1)

8 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - FINANCING AND INVESTMENT
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000

59 Net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) 60

(14)  Interest receivable and similar income (15)

(9)  Changes in the fair value of investment properties -

(9) Net Income & Expenditure on investment properties (9)

27 Total 36

9 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
(1,402) Non-ring fenced government grants (1,653)
582 Capital grants and contributions (500)
(1,984) Total ___(2,153)

10 BALANCE SHEET - USABLE RESERVES

Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
note 6.

11 BALANCE SHEET - UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000

762 Revaluation Reserve 762

71,627 Capital Adjustment Account 69,739
(1,614)  Pensions Reserve (2,545)

1 Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account 1

70,776 Total Unusable Reserves 67,957

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Board arising from increases in the value of its
Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

o re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
. used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or
. disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve

was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital
Adjustment Account.
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2015/2016 2016/2017

£000 £000

711 Balance at 1 April 762

100 Upward Revaluation of assets -

(49) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not _
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

- Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped -

- Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account -

762  Balance at 31 March 762

Capital Adjustment Account.

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of
acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation and impairment losses are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Account is credited with the amounts set aside
by the Board as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The Account
contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the
Board. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 6
provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.

2015/2016

£000
73,119

(2,102)

—_—

(2,102)

601

601

- 71,627

Balance at 1 April

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

e Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets
¢ Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment

o Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets
consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:

e Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

e Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to
capital financing

Total Capital Financing Applied during the year

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Balance at 31 March
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2016/2017
£000

71,627

(1,943)
(22)

(1,965)

77

77

69,739
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Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.
The Board accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside
to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Board
makes employer's contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly
responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the
benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Board has set aside to meet them.
The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits
come to be paid.

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
(1,935) Balance at 1 April (1,614)
435 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) (463)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
(288)  credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in (696)
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
174 Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 208
pensioners payable in the year
(1,614) Balance at 31 March (2,545)

Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would
otherwise arise on the General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but
not taken in the year. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
(1)  Balance at 1 April 1
1 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the )
preceding year
1 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 1

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

2 accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the )
year in accordance with statutory requirements
1 Balance at 31 March 1

12 CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
581 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 77

and intangible assets

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets

(582) Other receipts from investing activities (500)
(1) Net cash flows from investing activities (423)
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13 CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000

(12) Other receipts from financing activities (14)

(12) Net cash flows from tinancing activities (14)

14 CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£000 £000
3,050 Bank current account 3,612
3,050 Total cash and cash equivalents 3,512
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15 EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

16

The Board has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Annual Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspections and to other non-audit services provided by the Board's external
auditors:

2015/2016 2016/2017

£000 £000
Fees payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services 12 12
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year
Total 12 12

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation in pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Board makes contributions towards
the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees
retire, the Board has a commitment to make the payments and this needs to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.

The Board participates in two post employment schemes:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Tayside Pension Fund), which is administered locally by
Dundee City Council and is a' funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Board and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities
with investment assets. The Scheme currently provides benefits based on career average revalued salary
and length of service on retirement.

e The Board also has liabilities for any discretionary pension payments outside the main scheme. These
benefits are an unfunded defined benefit final arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when
awards are made. There are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities for discretionary
awards, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

The Tayside Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Scotland) regulations 2008 and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the
Pensions Investment Sub-Committee of the Policy and Resources Committee of Dundee City Council.
Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. The investment managers of the
fund are appointed by the Sub-Committee.

The principal risks to the Board of the scheme are the life expectancy assumptions, statutory changes to
the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals of members from the scheme),
changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.
These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge the Cost of Services the
amounts required by statute as described in the accounting policies note (please refer to Note 1 item F for
further details).

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

The Board recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the
Board is required to make against reserves is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of
post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Reserve via the Movement in
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Reserve Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during
the year:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Cost of Services:
¢ current service cost
o past service cost
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
e netinterest on the defined liability (asset)
¢ administration expenses
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
« Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in the net
interest expense)
o Other actuarial gains / (losses) on assets
o Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions
o Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions
o Other (if applicable)
Total Re-measurements
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement:

« reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the
Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions
in the year:

« employers’ contributions payable to scheme
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Local Government Pension

Scheme
2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
229 215
- 421
58 57
1 3
288 696
316 (1,471)
(747) 1,903
(4) 31
(435) 463
(147) 1,159
(288) (696)
174 228
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Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Local Government Pension Scheme

2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000 £000

Net pension assets as at:
Present value of funded obligation 9,762 9,178 11,354
Fair value of scheme assets (7,984) (7,705) (8,177)
Net liability 1,778 1,473 2,177
Present value of unfunded obligation 157 141 368
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 1,935 1,614 2,545

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

Opening balance at 1 April

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by scheme participants
Re-measurement (gains) and losses:

o change in financial assumptions

o change in demographic assumptions
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation
Benefits paid

Past service costs, including curtaiiments
Closing balance at 31 March

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

Opening balance at 1 April

Interest income on assets

Re-measurement gain / (loss): return on assets less interest
Other re-measurement gain

Administration expenses

Employer contributions

Contributions by scheme participants

Benefits paid

Closing balance at 31 March

Funded liabilities: Local

Government Pension Scheme

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
9,919 9,319

229 215
302 322
39 41
(747) 1,903
(4) 31
(419) (530)
- 421
9,319 11,722

Local Government Pension

Scheme
2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
7,984 7,705
244 265
(316) 1,471
(1) )
174 228
39 41
(419) {530)
7,705 9,177

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-

term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £1,736,000 ( 2015/2016: £(72,000)).
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The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Board has in the long run to pay post employment
(retirement) benefits. The total liability of £2.545m is reflected in the Board's Balance Sheet. However,
statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Board remains healthy.
The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining
working life of employees (i.e., before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels,
etc. The Tayside Pension Fund has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of
actuaries, being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2014.

Local Government
Pension Scheme

2015/2016 2016/2017

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years):

Men 213 244

Women 233 23.5
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years):

Men 235 23.7

Women 256 258
Rate of inflation (RP) 3.1% 3.5%
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.2% 2.6%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.0% 3.6%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.2% 2.6%
Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 3.5% 2.6%

The estimate of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for
example, assume that the life expectancy increase or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the
sensitivity analyses have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitvity analysis
below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the Scheme:

Local Government Pension Scheme

£000 £000 £000
+0.1% 0% -0.1%

Adjustment to discount rate:

o Present value of total obligation 11,542 11,722 11,905

o Projected service cost 279 284 289
Adjustment to long term salary increase:

o Present value of total obligation 11,739 11,722 11,705

o Projected service cost 284 284 284
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred re-valuation:

o Present value of total obligation 11,888 11,782 11,558

o Projected service cost 289 284 279
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption: + 1 year None -1 year

o Present value of total obligation 12,192 11,722 11,270

o Projected service cost 293 284 275
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The Board’s share of Tayside Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categories, by amount and
proportion of the total assets held:

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£000 % £000 %
Equity investments 5,282 69 6,608 72
Gilts 403 5 608 7
Other Bonds 995 13 905 10
Property 940 12 905 10
Cash 85 1 151 )
Total 7,705 100 9,177 100

Impact on the Board's cash flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The
Tayside Pension Fund has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100%.
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 31
March 2017.

The Board anticipated to pay £123,000 expected contributions to the scheme in 2017/2018. The weighted
average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 16 years (2015/2016: 16 years).

17 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no events that occurred between 1 April 2017 and 8 June 2017 that would have an impact on the
2016/2017 financial statements. The latter date is the date on which the unaudited accounts were authorised
for issue by the Treasurer.

18 RELATED PARTIES

The Board is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Board or to be controlled or influenced by the Board. Disclosure of
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Board might have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely
with the Board.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Board. It is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Board operates, provides the majority of its funding in the
form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Board has with other parties.
There are no grant receipts outstanding at 31 March 2017 (see note 26).

Other Local Authorities
Angus, Dundee City and Fife Councils are considered to be related parties of the Board. During 2016/2017,
the Board entered into a number of transactions with Dundee City Council and Fife Council, as detailed below:

2015/2016 2016/2017

Income Expenditure Income  Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000
Dundee City Council:

(14) - Interest Receivable (15) -

- 62 Central Support Services - 62

- 2 Grounds Maintenance - 4

- 72 Miscellaneous - 27

(14) 136 Total Dundee City Council (15) 93

Fife Council:

B - Grounds Maintenance - 6

- 6 Miscellaneous - 6

- 6 Total Fife Council - 12
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following balances existed between the Board and Dundee City Council and Fife Council as at 31 March
2017:

2015/2016 2016/2017
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£000 £000 £000 £000
Dundee City Council:
- - Central Support Services - 3
(14) - Interest Receivable (15) S
o 34 Miscellaneous (incl. Capital Works) - 35
(14) 34 Total Dundee City Council (15) 38
Fife Council:
: - Miscellaneous - i2
- - Total Fife Council - 12
19 LEASES

The Board as Lessee

The Board held no assets on finance or operating lease during 2016/2017 and, accordingly, there were no
jease rentals paid to lessors during the year (2015/2016: None) or commitments due to lessors in 2016/2017
(2015/2016: None).

The Board as Lessor

The Board had entered a three year agreement for the lease of land and property to a third party which ended
in 2011. This arrangement has continued on a monthly basis as permitted in the lease agreement. This
agreement is accounted for as an operating lease. In 2016/2017 the Board received rent of £10,213 from this
agreement (2015/2016: £10,213). The present value of minimum lease payments receivable as at the
Balance Sheet date are as follows:

a) Not later than 1 year = £10,213

b) later than 1 year and not later than 5 years = £Nil

c) later than 5 years = ZNil.

20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

2015/2016 2016/20167

£000 £000
Rental income from investment property 10 10
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property (1 (1)
Net gain/(loss) 9 9

There are no restrictions on the Board's abiiity to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Board's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.
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The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2015/2016 2016/20167
£000 £000

Balance at start of the year 62 71
Additions:
Purchases : -
Subsequent expenditure - .
Disposals: - -
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments 9 -
Transfers:
to/from Inventories . .
to/from Property, Plant and Equipment 2 -

Balance at end of the year 71 71

The Board's Investment Properties are valued using the Level 3 (unobservable inputs for the asset) valuation
technique / fair value hierarchy. There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year.
21 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements on Balances
Movements in 2016/2017:

Other Vehicles, Total
Land and Plant & Infrastructure Property, Plant
Buildings Equipment Assets & Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2016 1,429 780 85,832 88,041
Additions - 46 39 77
Derecognition — Disposals - - - -
Expenditure Not Adding Value - . (10) (10)
Revaluation Increases /
(Decreases) recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve . . . .
Revaluation Increases /
(Decreases) recognised in the
Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services (31) - . (31)
Other movements in Cost or
Valuation - B - =
At 31 March 2017 1,398 826 85,853 88,077
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
At 1 April 2016 29 395 15,225 15,649
Depreciation charge 19 61 1,854 1,934
Depreciation written out to the
Surplus / Deficit on the .
Provision of Services (9) - - @)
Derecognition — Disposals - L i} -
At 31 March 2017 39 456 17,079 17,574
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2017 1,359 370 68,774 70,503
At 31 March 2016 1,400 385 70,607 72,392

47

201



202

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparative Movements in 2015/2016:

Other Vehicles, Total
Land and Plant & Infrastructure Property, Plant
Buildings Equipment Assets & Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2015 1,483 731 85,369 87,583
Additions . 24 495 519
Derecognition — Disposals - (57) (32 (89)
Expenditure Not Adding Value - - - -

Revaluation Increases /

(Decreases) recognised in the

Revaluation Reserve 51 - o 51
Revaluation Increases /

(Decreases) recognised in the

Surplus / Deficit on the

Provision of Services (105) - - (105)
Other movements in Gost or
-Valuation - 82 . 82
At 31 March 2016 1,429 780 85,832 88,041
Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 April 2015 23 338 13,393 13,754
Depreciation charge 19 57 1,832 1,908
Depreciation written out to the

Surplus / Deficit on the

Provision of Services (13) - - (13)
Derecognition — Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2016 29 395 15,225 15,649
Net Book Value:

At 31 March 2016 1,400 385 70,607 72,392
At 31 March 2015 1,460 393 71,976 73,829

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2017, the Board has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2017/2018 and future years, budgeted to cost £482,000 (Similar
commitments at 31 March 2016 were £32,000).

The major commitments are for
- New Vehicles = £140,000;
- CCTV =£160,000; and
- Variable Message Signs = £168,000.

Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to
be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out by Mr Alastair
Kay BSc MRICS, Registered Valuer for Dundee City Council's City Development Department. Valuations of
land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in

the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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22 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the

resources that have been used to finance it.

2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000
Capital investment:
Property, Plant and Equipment 519 77
Total Capital Investment 519 77
Sources of finance:
Capital receipts - -
Government grants and other contributions 519 77
Total Sources of Finance 519 77
23 INVENTORIES
Maintenance Materials Total
2015/2016 2016/2017 2015/2016 2016/2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance outstanding at start of year 63 61 63 61
Recognised as an expense in the year @ (4) (2) (4)
Other Adjustments - - . .
Balance outstanding at year-end 61 57 61 57

24 SHORT-TERM DEBTORS
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000
Local authorities 14 15
Other entities and individuals 7 8
Total 29 23

25 SHORT-TERM CREDITORS
31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000
Central government bodies 1,048 1112
Local authorities 79 50
Public Corporations & Trading Funds 10 )
Other entities and individuals 31 42
o3 1,168 1,204

26 GRANT INCOME

The Board credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Account in 2016/2017:

2015/2016 2016/20167
£000 £000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant [ncome
Scottish Government Revenue Grant 1,402 1,644
Heritage Lottery Funding . 9
Scottish Government Capital Grant 500 500
Dundee City Council Capital Grant 82 .
Total 1,984 2,153

The Board has £1,096,000 of revenue grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as
income due to them having conditions attached to them that requires the monies or property to be returned to
the grant provider (2015/2016: £1,040,000). This is included in Note 25, Short-Term Creditors under Central

government bodies.
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27 HIGHWAYS NETWORK ASSET

At its meeting on 8th March 2017, the CIPFA / LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board decided not to
proceed with the introduction of the Highways Network Asset Code of Practice into the financial reporting
requirements for local authorities. The Board decided that, currently and in particular in the absence of central
support for key elements of the valuation, the benefits are outweighed by the costs of implementation for local
authorities.

Highways authorities' accounting poiicies for the infrastructure class ot assets are therefore unchanged from
the approach adopted in previous years, i.e. the infrastructure class of assets will be defined as it was in the
2015/2016 Code and be measured at depreciated historical cost.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TAY ROAD BRIDGE 205
JOINT BOARD AND THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND

¢

The Annual Accounts set out on pages 11 to 50 are subject to audit in accordance with the requirements of
Part VI of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The Auditor appointed for this purpose by the Accounts Commission for Scotland is:

Bruce Crosbie

for and on behalf of Audit Scotland,
Senior Audit Manager,

Audit Services,

Audit Scotland,

4th Floor,

102 West Port

Edinburgh

EH3 9DN
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REPORT TO:

REPORT ON:

REPORT BY:

REPORT NO:

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 19 JUNE 2017
MAINSTREAMING THE EQUALITY DUTY 2017 - 2019
THE BRIDGE MANAGER

e lTIéIVl No: [ & >

i )

To seek Joint Board approval for the publication on the Tay Road Bridge web site of a
Mainstreaming Equality Report 2017 - 2019.

2 RECOMMENDATION

The Committee are asked to approve the publication of the Mainstreaming Equality
Report 2017 - 2019, as per Appendix 1.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

4 BACKGROUND

The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) (Scotland) Regulations 2012 places a specific
duty on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board to publish a report on Mainstreaming the
Equality Duty by 30 April 2017; publish equality outcomes or report progress by the
end of April 2019; and publish employee information every two years.

5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

6 CONSULTATION

The Clerk, Treasurer and Engineer have been consulted and are in agreement with

the content.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None.

ALAN HUTCHISON
BRIDGE MANAGER

20 MAY 2017
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Introduction

The mainstreaming equality report supersedes and builds upon the good work taken
forward in meeting the equality outcomes set out in the Tay.Road Bridge Board's
Single Equality Scheme 2013-2017.:Appendix:1 confirms the actions taken to
complete the equality.outcomes noted in.the:2013-2017 report.

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act), which harmonised and replaced previous equalities
legislation came into force on 5 April 2011. The Act placed a general equality duty
on public authorities to pay due regard to the need to:

e eliminate discrimination;

e promote equality of opportunity; and

¢ foster good relations across the range of protected characteristics.

The general equality duty expanded the range of those protected under equality
legislation to include the following protected characteristics of age, disability,
gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief and
sexual orientation. The equality duty also covers marriage and civil partnerships,
with regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination in employment.

The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) (Scotland) Regulations 2012 places a specific
duty on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board by the 30t April 2017, to:

e Publish areport on the progress it has made to make the equality duty
integral to the exercise of its functions so to better perform that duty.

e Assess the impact of proposed new or revised policies and practice against
the needs of the general equality duty.

o Publish a set of equality outcomes which it considers will enable it to better
perform the Equality Duty. (Publish new equality outcomes every 2 years).

e Publish areport on the composition, recruitment, development and
retention of employees with respect to the number and relevant protected
characteristics of employees.

e Publish its equality reports in a manner that is accessible to the public.

e As faras practicable equality reports should use existing public performance
reporting systems.

e Report every 2 years on the progress made to achieve the equality outcomes.

e Have dueregard that relevant public procurement agreements, conditions
should include considerations to enable the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board to
better perform the equality duty.
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2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

Progress

Mainstreaming Equality: The Tay Road Bridge Joint:Board’s commitment to
mainstreaming equality is best demonstrated by its actions to integrate equality into
all its mainstream planning structures from the Senior Management Level to front
line delivery of service. This is taken forward by:

e Ensuring timely and appropriate reporting of the Equality Duty.

o Identifying gaps in meeting our Equality Duty and make appropriate
recommendations.

e Promoting the engagement of people with protected characteristics in
service planning.

s Reporting and advising the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Members and Senior
Board Officers on equalities.

Assessing the Impact and Reviewing Policies and Practices

All policies adopted by the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are assessed for their impact
on Equalities issues by means of Equalities Impact Assessments (EQIA) where
appropriate using Dundee City Council guidance.

Equality and Diversity Training:

The Tay Road Bridge is committed to providing ongoing Equality and Diversity
Awareness training for all staff. Staff are made aware of equalities issues as part of
the induction process and further specific training provided via third party trainers to
support staff as required and determined through Employee Development Reviews.
The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Elected Members are briefed in the Equality Act
Duties by Officers from their own Council.

Setting of Equality Outcomes

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board undertook a review of its procedures, polices and
service delivery in accordance with the following documents:

o The Equality Act 2010 {Specific Duties) (Scotland) Regulations 2012
e Equality outcomes and the public sector equality duty: A guide for public
authorities {Scotland)

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's Equality Outcomes 2017-2019 are set out in
Appendix 2 of this report.
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Occupational Segregation

There are a number of posts which are dominated by one gender. These posts are
traditionally occupied by males although all jobs and:descriptions are non-gender
specific. Consideration of training for the Tay Road Bridge Management team to
avoid.-unconscious bias recruitment forms part of the Equality Outcomes highlighted
at appendix 2.

Employee Equality Monitoring

Duties

The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) (Scotland) Regulations 2012 requires all listed
public authorities to take steps to gather information on the composition of the
authorities workforce and information on recruitment, development and retention
of employees relating to the relevant protected characteristics.

The public sector equality duty covers the following characteristics: age, disability,
gender, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief and
sexual orientation.

The purpose of the legislation is to ensure that public authorities:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct that is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010.

e Advance equality of opportunity between peaple who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Information

The information detailed in this report had been completed from a number of
different and independent information systems. In addition - questionnaires sent to
all staff, these systems are Resource Line (Payroll/Personnel System), training
records/databases, as well as paper based records.

The Equality Act requires local authorities to report on the composition of the
authorities employees..

For data protection purposes no record of less than five has been reported in the
attached appendices.
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7.3

7.4

7.5

Non Disclosure of Equality information

The following levels of non disclosure of information from existing employees were
recorded:

Topic Non Disclosure Rate
Disability 0%

Race 0%

Religion and Belief 14.81 (4)

Sexual Orientation 0%

Marriage and Civil Partnership 0%

The new start form for the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board includes all protected
characteristics stipulated in the Equality Act. Itis anticipated that the rates of non
disclosure will gradually reduce if information is collected when employees
commence their employment. Resource Link will be developed to hold the
protected characteristic information and in addition further developments are
underway to ensure that the council records details of appraisals, training and
development, disciplinaries, etc.

A significant number of Tay Road Joint Board employees provided their details across
the four strands covered in the table. On average most of employees provided their
equality information.

Recruitment

The statistics gleaned from the Equalities Questionnaire attached to the applications
are given in Appendix 2.

Further Action
Equality monitoring issues will be reported to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board on an

annual basis as per the Single Equalities Scheme and any resulting actions will be
taken by the Senior Officers of the Board.
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Equality Outcomes 2013 —-2017

‘Outcome Action Plan Updated May 16 2017' |

Tafget o
Date

1. Ensure Service
Delivery meets
the needs of all
communities

e Engage with local communities to identify

Complete

barriers — attend workshops/consultation
events organised by Dundee City Council {if
available) All staff complete mandatory E
Learning Modules in Equality and-Diversity,
and this is recorded in their Training Plans.
We are in contact with local spgcia’ﬁst
interest o_rg?n,i,satiqns,'incly@i_fjé-n'qmgrduj
charities, which use The Tay Road Bridge a8
a means to raise funds. These charities can
provide feedback on improvements that can
be made to improve our level of service.
Offer opportunity for service users to advise
of protected characteristics — supply
questionnaires with feedback forms
Feedback formgare provided to all users of
the Tay Road Bridge who require our
breakdown service or require other
assistanice on the Bridge. Thig form offers
the user the opportunity to recommend
changes that we:could make to improve our
service. All Feedback forms are discussed at
Management Meeting every one to two
months..

Improve accessibility of web services -
investigate provision of translation capability
via Google Translate or other web based
service The Tay Road Bridge rolled out an
improved Web Site in the Autumn of 2015:
This has a drop down Google Translate
facility.

2. Analyse
Equality
information to
eliminate any
disadvantage

Establish equality working Group, with
assistance from Equalities Officer, Dundee
City Council At all Management Meetings
there is an Equality agenda item to permit
discussion and idea sharing to assist the Tay
Road Bridge in providing equal opportunity
for everyone.

. Complete

Comnplete

' Complete
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17

17

23

isting Employees broken down by Gender for 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Job Applicants and Exis

Table 5
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tation

rien

jcants and Existing Employees broken down by Sexual O

Job Appl

Table 7

December 2016

20

for 1 January 2016 to 31

18



Job Applicants and Existing Employees broken down by Marriage/Civil Partnership for

1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Table 8

FECERY
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